
CITY OF WEST HAVEN, CONNECTICUT 
  Planning & Zoning Commission 
       City Hall | 355 Main Street   West Haven, Connecticut 06516  

    
Kathleen Hendricks, Chairman                                                        Rich Standish, Alternate 
Steven Mullins, Vice -Chairman                                                       Barry Cohen, Alternate 
Christopher Suggs, Secretary             Open, Alternate 

Alfred Posey, Commissioner             David Killeen, Assistant City Planner 

Joseph Trapani, Commissioner             Joe Riccio, Economic Development Director 

 

Minutes of Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting of March 8, 2016 

Harriet North Community Room 

7:00 p.m. 

 

The meeting was called to order at 7:04 p.m. by Chairperson Kathleen Hendricks. 

 

Present:  Kathleen Hendricks, Chairperson, Steven Mullins, Vice Chairman,  Commission 

Members Christopher Suggs, Alfred Posey, Rich Standish, Barry Cohen, Asst. Planner David 

Killeen, Planner, Joseph Riccio, Zoning Officer Cathy Conniff, Corporation Counsel Vincent 

Amendola. 

 

Absent:  Comm. Joseph Trapani 

 
A motion to approve the minutes of the February 23, 2016 minutes was made by Comm. Posey. Seconded 
by Comm. Mullins. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Public Session was opened by Chairperson Hendricks. 

 The following two applications were read:  

1. 420 Island Lane:  A Special Permit for the construction of a 74,800 Sq. Ft. warehouse 

Building with Associated Parking and loading docks. The Site grading, utilities and land- 

scaping is also proposed. In a LM (light Manufacturing) Zone of the City of West Haven 

Zoning Regulations under Article 2 Section 25, Article 10 section 85 and Article 12 

section 92. Owner/Applicant: Threegen Associates LLC  File # 16-180 SP 

2. 420 Island Lane:  A Site Plan Review for the construction of a 74,800 Sq. Ft. warehouse 

Building with Associated Parking and loading docks. The Site grading, utilities and land- 

scaping is also proposed. In a LM (Light Manufacturing) Zone of the City of West Haven 

Zoning Regulations under Article 2 Section 25, Article 10 section 85 and Article 12 

section 92. Owner/Applicant: Threegen Associates LLC  File # 16-181 SR 

 

Attorney Tim Yolen introduced himself and stated he is representing the 

Owner/Applicant, Threegen Associates, LLC. on the above named applications (file #  

16-180 SP and 16-181-SR) He then stated that the owner, John DeGrand,  is a very well 



known businessman in the city.  As many know, the DeGrands’ have been in business in 

the city for over 30 years.  

 

 Attorney Yolen displayed a site plan of the proposed 74,800 sq foot warehouse building 

and explained that this application had already been reviewed and approved by 

Inland/Wetlands and Zoning Board of Appeals for 3 variances. ZBA removed the islands 

for automobile parking so as to offer more parking spaces.  Another change was moving 

all bays to the rear of the warehouse so all parking is to the rear of the building, away 

from the residential areas. By doing so, the frontage was changed.  The building will sit 

closer to the road.   By doing so, it will reduce noise from running trucks and will reduce 

noise from trains.  Both will benefit the neighbors. Comm. Cohen agreed that this will be 

a great buffer for the area residents. Attorney Yolen believes that all criteria for this 

approval have been met.   

 

He then turned discussion over to Jim Anderson, Engineer who went on to say that Inland 

Wetlands showed concern regarding the ongoing issues with flooding.  Mr. Anderson 

explained that drainage pipes will lead to an existing retention pond.  He stated that the 

current exit pipe will not change drainage will not be increased. 

 

Comm. Posey stated that a resident lost her life when the railroad underpass flooded 

during a storm. He expressed concern since there would be additional runoff when the 

building is constructed and pavement replaces what is now millings. His concern is the 

liability associated with this.  Mr. Anderson stated that since the exit pipe remains the 

same dimension it should not adversely affect the flow.  Cathy Conniff also stated that 

the design calls for an increase of the amount of retention due to the fact that the retention 

area will be approximately 2 feet lower than it is currently and the size of the retention 

pond will be increased.   

 Mr. Anderson stated that there should be no more than ½ of one percent increase in the 

 amount of runoff when the building is constructed and paving completed. 

 

 Mr. Posey then asked if the new plan would include “left turn only” for all trucks.  This 

 was an agreement with Augliera Trucking.  He asked that remain the same.  The  owners 

 were in agreement with that condition.   

 

 Mr. Killeen also suggested that an easement be put in place since the two adjacent 

 buildings will be using the same entrance and exit.  Mr. Yolen said he will draw up the 

 easement and submit it to the Planning Department.  

 

 Mr. Mullins asked about lighting.  Lighting will be on the building pointing downward 

 and at all entrances and bays.  Mr. Mullins expressed concern about safety since the 

 hours of operation will include times of darkness.  Mr. Mullins asked if security cameras 

 would be installed. There will be cameras. Mr. Mullins stated that lighting will enhance 



 security camera footage as well. The engineer stated that lighting along the parking lot 

can be added.  Mr. Mullins would like that to be added as a  condition to ensure safety and 

security.   

 

Mr. Mullins asked if there was a street level view of what the building would look like and what 

building materials would be used.  They will be using insulated panels similar to those used on 

the other building. There are no street level views available.  Mr. Anderson was asked if there 

will be windows in the front of the building.  No.  Mr. Mullins asked what type of trees/ 

vegetation will be planted.  There are several tree species including but not limited to: white firs, 

fraser firs 

 

Comm. Posey asked if there was any signage and if so they had a design.  At this time there is no 

signage. 

 

Chairperson Hendricks asked if there was anyone who wanted to speak in favor or against this 

proposal. She asked three times. No one spoke either for or against.  Mr. Yolen thanked the 

Commission and asked that the Commission vote favorably for this proposal.  

 

Chairperson Hendricks stated there were two conditions for approval:   

 1.  Left turns only out of the driveway for trucks 

 2.  Lighting be installed in the rear parking lots  

 

Asst. Planner, Mr. Killeen read an e-mail from Building Official Frank Gladwin regarding said 

proposal.   

  

Public session was closed.  The secretary read the application details and a motion to approve, 

with conditions, File # 16-180 SP and File # 16-181 SR was made by Comm. Suggs. Seconded 

by Comm. Posey. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

Regular Meeting 

The following application was read: 

1. 147 Campbell Ave.: A Site Plan Review for the construction of a 600 Sq. Ft. addition to 

an existing Convenience Store/Gas Facility in the CBD (Central Business District) Zone 

of the City of West Haven Zoning Regulation under Article 2, Section 20; Table 20.1; 

and Article 8, Section 75. Applicant: Nadeem Khalid and Owner: New Haven Best, LLC. 

File #16-182 SR  

Mr. Kalid introduced himself and presented a plan for the 15 x 40 (600 sq. foot) addition.  He 

stated that this would allow for needed storage space and he is hoping that it can act favorably on 

this plan.   

 

Mr. Killeen read an e-mail from Mr. Gladwin, Building Official which expresses concern 

regarding wall construction.  

 



Mr. Killeen read an e-mail from Fire Marshall Keith Flood stating that he wants this building to 

comply with CT State Fire Safety Code.   

 

Comm. Posey stated that he is pleased with the way this facility has been kept.  He asked about 

the wall and Mr. Kahlid stated that a vinyl fence has been installed.   

 

Comm. Standish also thanked Mr. Kahlid for the upkeep of this property since this business 

opened.  He stated that he understood that the owners would utilize some of this space for 

making sandwiches.  He asked if this as correct.  Mr. Kahlid confirmed that a portion would be 

utilized for that purpose. 

 

Chairperson Hendricks asked if there was anyone who wanted to speak in favor or against this 

proposal. She asked three times. No one spoke either for or against  

 

Public session was closed.  The secretary read the application details and a motion to approve 

File # 16-182 SR was made by Comm. Standish. Seconded by Comm. Posey. Motion carried by 

unanimous vote. 

 

The following applications were read:  

 

1. 260 Rockdale Road: A Site Plan Review for the installation of stadium lighting at 

the Ralph D. DellaCamera Stadium in the EFD (Educational Facilities District) Zone 

of the City of West Haven Zoning Regulations under Article 2, Section 28; Table 

28.2; and Article 8, Section 75. Applicant/Owner: University of New Haven. File # 

16-183 SR 

2. 446 Boston Post Road (AKA 446 Orange Avenue): A Site Plan Review for the 

installation of an electrical scoreboard at Arcadio “Kayo” Rodriguez Jr. Soccer Field in 

the EFD (Educational Facilities District) Zone of the City of West Haven Zoning 

Regulations under Article 2, Section 28; Table 28.2;  and Article 8, Section 75. 

Applicant/Owner: University of New Haven. File # 16-184 SR. 

Mr. Joe Williams of Shipman, Goodwin represented University of New Haven for the above site 

plan reviews.   Mr. Williams explained that UNH is asking that lighting be permitted on Ralph 

D. DellaCamera Field.  In order to comply with Federal Title 9 guidelines, UNH would like to 

make a current field hockey club activity into a recognized NCAA sport.  Lighting this facility 

will give the program the necessary time for practices and games. This facility will be utilized 

for other sports such as soccer and football as well. However, Mr. Williams emphasized that at 

no time will football games be played, during evening hours, on this field and the University will 

impose a curfew for lighting. .   

 

Mr. Williams stated that being the good neighbor that UNH is, a meeting with residents was held 

to discuss any possible concerns residents had.  Comm. Mullins asked how many were in 



attendance. Mr. Williams stated that despite efforts by UNH Staff to bring people out for this 

meeting, only about 10 residents attended.   

 

Mr. Williams informed the Commission that the University is working with Musco Lighting. 

They are a reputable company who has been utilized for this purpose all over the country have 

even lit city owned fields. Musco Lighting will provide the safe lighting as required by NCAA 

standards for these facilities and minimize the impact it has on neighboring properties.   

 

Mr. Williams displayed the Electrical Scoreboard Site Plan and stated that there would be a total 

of  four (4) 80 foot poles 2 poles on the west side which will hold 15 fixtures each and 2 on the 

east side which will hold 17 fixtures on each pole. He also explained that there would be lighting 

along the walkway so that students and staff can safely enter and exit the facility in the dark.  

These lights will only be on when the field is in use.  This plan completes and meets all goals 

and safety of athletes and will meet an important need for this 1st rate academic institution.  

 

The University has agreed to impose an 11 p.m.curfew for lights in order to reduce the impact 

the lighting will have on the neighbors.  Mr. Mullins asked if the lights are designed to be turned 

on and off manually or by timer.  Mr. Louis Annino, Jr., Director of Facilities stated that this can 

be done either way.  He also stated that this process will be overseen by the Athletic Director.   

 

Mr. Williams introduced members of UNH Staff, Debbie Chin, Athletic Director, Louis Annino, 

Jr.,   Vice President of Facilities and Ronald Quagliani Chief of Student Safety, who were 

present to answer any questions the Commission may have.    

 

Mr. Killeen read an e-mail from Building Official, Frank Gladwin, stating a 3rd party plan review 

from an Independent Structural Engineer based on 2005 Building Code since the pole is more 

than 60 feet .  Also, a photometric plan is key to ensure that there are no issues with surrounding 

neighbors.   

 

Mr. Killeen stated that the photometric plan shows there are 8 properties above the requirements.  

We would want to be able to have those levels lowered if necessary.  Mr. Williams stated that the 

University would be open to that since adjustments can be made.   

 

Mr. Williams then moved onto the proposed scoreboard site plan.  This scoreboard will be 

placed on the Arcadio “Kayo” Rodriguez Jr. Soccer Field near the end of Isadore Street and 

facing Route 1. This lighting from this LED lit scoreboard will not have an impact on the 

neighbors.  

 



Mr. Killeen read an e-mail from Building Official, Frank Gladwin, reminding the University that 

special inspections specifically related to concrete, rebar and soil information are required as the 

scoreboard posts will be 25 feet. 

 

Chairperson Hendricks asked if there was anyone who wanted to speak in favor or against this 

proposal. She asked three times. No one spoke either for or against. 

 

Chairperson Hendricks stated the following conditions: 

 1)  No evening football games 

 2)  11 p.m. curfew on lighting 

 3)  In the event of complaints, the University will take consideration and work to resolve 

 concerns by lowering the light levels. 

 

  

This agenda item was closed.  The secretary read the application details and a motion to approve 

File # 16-183 SR with conditions was made by Comm. Mullins. Seconded by Comm. Standish. 

Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

 

A motion to approve File # 16-184 SR was made by Comm. Mullins. Seconded by Comm. 

Cohen. Motion carried by unanimous vote. 

 

 

Staff Reports 

 

1. Update to City Plan of Conservation and Development 

Mr. Killeen presented a Frequently Asked Questions FAQ regarding the City Plan of 

Conservation and Development, as well as a schedule, to the Commission.  Mr. Killeen along 

with City Planner Joe Riccio, have been meeting with and touring the city with consultants.  

 

The city’s most recent plan is from 2004 and has not been updated. This plan is necessary in 

order for the city to secure funding from the State for various projects/ grants.   Mr. Killeen 

explained that the city will be forming a steering committee to create this plan and it is important 

that this Commission not only be represented on that Committee, but be kept informed along the 

way.   

 

Commissioner of Planning, Joe Riccio will be sitting down with the administration to determine 

the number of members who will serve on this Committee as well as who.  The Administration 

feels that Members of Boards and Commissions, Public and Private Organizations as well as 

residents should be represented on this Committee.   

 



Mr. Killeen stated that the Statute requires this plan to be submitted by July 1, 2016.  The city 

will not make that deadline.  Corporation Counsel, Vincent Amendola stated that the State is 

looking very closely at municipalities.  

 

 

There was some additional discussion regarding this Plan.  The Plan will not only secure funding 

from the state, but it sets a vision and goals for the city over the next 10 years.  

 

This plan, once complete, should be reviewed and updated on a regular basis (at least every 

couple of years).  

 

Mr. Killeen stated that with the Metro North Train Station, this Development plan is very 

important.  Such questions will be discussed next meeting (TOD). 

 

Comm. Cohen asked what the plans are for Frontage Road.  Mr. Killeen explained that there are 

many “hot button” issues that must be addressed.    Mr. Mullins asked about Derby Avenue (Rte 

34) which he stated has been ignored for the past few years.   

 

Chairperson Hendricks asked Mr. Killeen to keep the Commission updated at least once monthly  

 

2. Discussion on Proposed Transit Oriented Development (TOD) Regulation Amendments 

 

Commissioner of Planning, Joe Riccio stated that the Planning and Development Dept. is 

looking at what is already on the books and has met with Robert Orr regarding this Plan.  

 

This is in the early stages and we will keep the Commission updated. 

 

A motion to adjourn was made by Comm. Posey. 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:45 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted by 

 

Rosa Richardson 

 

* Please note:  these minutes are subject to approval 

 

 

 

 



 

 

The West Haven Planning and Zoning Commission made the following decisions Tuesday, 

March 8, 2016 in the Harriet North Community Room, 2nd Floor, City Hall, 355 Main Street, 

West Haven, CT 06516, 7:00 p.m. 

 

 

1.   420 Island Lane:  A Special Permit to construct a 74,800 sq. foot warehouse building 

with associated site improvements in the  LM Zone - Owner/Applicant: Threegen 

Associates LLC  File # 16-180 SP  APPROVED with Conditions 

 

2.   420 Island Lane:  A Site Plan Review to construct a 74,800 sq. foot warehouse 

building with associated site improvements in the LM Zone-  Owner/Applicant: Threegen 

Associates LLC  File # 16-180 SP             APPROVED with Conditions 

  

3.   147 Campbell Ave.: A Site Plan Review to construct a 600 sq. foot addition to an 

existing convenience store/gas facility in the CBD Zone- Applicant: Nadeem Khalid and 

Owner: New Haven Best, LLC. File #16-182 SR    APPROVED  

 

4.   260 Rockdale Road:  A Site Plan Review to install stadium lighting in the EFD Zone  

Applicant/Owner: University of New Haven. File # 16-183 SR    APPROVED with 

conditions 

 

5.  446 Boston Post Road (AKA 446 Orange Avenue): A Site Plan Review to install an 

electrical scoreboard in the EFD Zone Applicant/Owner: University of New Haven.  

File # 16-184 SR.     APPROVED 

   

 

 

 

 

 


